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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )

)
Kritorian for Congress and Nathan Bailey, )
in his official capacity as treasurer; )

David Krikorisn; ) MUR 6211
Armenian National Committee ) "
of America; )
Hairenik Association, Inc. )
(d/b/a Armenian Weekly) )
STATEMENT OF REASONS

Vice Chair CAROLINE C. HUNTER and
Commissioners DONALD F. McGAHN and MATTHEW S. PETERSEN

In this matter, two responrients—(1) the Armenian National Committee of America, a
section 501(c)(4) nonprofit corporation, and (2) the Armenian Weekly, a newspap_er.—used
virtually identical language in communications urging their respective audiences to contribute to
a federal candidate (David Krikorian). The Office of General Counsel (“OGC”) recommended
that the Commission find reason to believe that the nonprofit violated the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as-amended (“the Act”) and Commission regulations, by allegedly
faeilitating the making of a contribution to a federal candidate when it sent the e-mail fundraising
appeal to its distribution list, which presumably consisted of persons outside the nonprofit’s
restrieted class. OGC also recommended my reason to believe with respeot tn the weekly
newspaper, concluding that the newspaper is protected by the Act’s press exemption. We
disagreed with the recommendation regarding the nonprofit.

In hght of last year’s Supreme Court decision in Citizens United v. Federal Election
Commission,! which struck down the Act’s prohibitions against corporations making
independent expenditures and electioneering commumcatlons, the continuing viability of the
Commission’s facilitation regulation is at best suspect,” at least as it applies to corporate and
labor fundraising activities that are conducted independently of federal candidates and political

1 130 S. Ct. 876 (2010).

2 11 C.E.R. § 114.2(f). We hope to address this issue in a future rulemaking.
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party committees. Furthermore, the Court’s holding in Citizens United rested, in large part, on
the ground that the speech of some (such as the media) may not be privileged over that of others.
As aresult, we cannot justify prohibiting the exact same independent spzech by one¢ entity that
we permit by andcher merely because the former does mut qualify for tht press oxemption whiie
the latter dass. Therefase, for reasons disoussed raore thoroughly below, we voted against
QGC’s recommendatians to find reason to believe that ANCA violated 2 U,S.C. § 441b(a) end
11 CF.R. § 114 2(f) and to take no action at this time with regard to David Krikorian and
Krikorian for Congress and, instead, voted to close the file.?

I. BACKGROUND

This matter arose when a complaint was filed with the Commission alleging that (1)
David Krikorian, a 2010 candidate for the Democratic congressional nomination jn Ohio’s
Second Congressional District, aud his campaign comrmittée, Krikorinn for Commpess
(collectively, “Krikorian™); (2) the Arsrenian Naticnal Committee of America (“ANCA”), a
Section 501(c)(4) nonprofit carparation that fosters civic awareness and support an issues
important to Armenian Americans; ard (3) the Armeniair Weekly, 2 newspaper owned by
Hairenik Association, Inc., violated the Act’s prohibition against making or receiving corporate
contributiong. Speaﬁcally, the complaint alleged that Krikorian received illegal corporate
contributions resulting from: e-mails distributed by AN CA to its mailing list that asked
recipients to make campaign contributions to Krikorian,* and the Armenian Weekly publishing
virtually the 1de_nt1cgl solicitation in its publication. The complaint, however, provides no
evidence, nor even alleges, that the solicitations made by ANCA and the Armerian Weekly were
coondinated with Krikorian. Nor does the complaint allege thm either ANCA or the Armenian
Weokly acted as a conduit for contrioutinns to Krikorian,

OGC recommended that the Commission find reason to believe that ANCA violated
Section 441b(a) of the Act and 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(f) by using corporate resources to facilitate the
making of campalgn contributions to Krikorian. However, OGC recommended ﬁndmg no
reason to believe that the Armenian Weekly violated the Act and Commission regulations, even
though it distributed the same communication to its subscribers that ANCA e-mailed to its
distribution list. OGC reasoned that the Armenian Weekly qualified for the press exemption®

3 We concur with OGC’s recommendation to find no reasen to believe ANCA violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d and
ta find no reason tp helieve Armenian Weekly violateit 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b(a) aid 441d. With regard to David
Krikorian and Krikorian for Congress, instead of taking no action at this time, we supported finding no reason to
believe that either of those respondents violated the Act.

4 In its response to the complaint, ANCA did nat address whether the e-mait solicitations went to persons
outside its restricted class. The definition of “restricted class” is set forth at 11 C.F.R. § 114.1(j) (“A corporation’s
restricted class is its stockholders and executive or administrative personnel and their families, and the executive and
administrative personnel of its subsidiaries, branches, divisions, and departments and their families.”).

? See 2 U.S.C. § 431(9)(B)(i) (exempting from the definition of “expenditure” “any news story, commentary,
or editorial dmu-muted tirwugh the facilities of any broadcastirmy statioi, newspaper, 11 ine, er other poriodicul
publication, unless such faailities aro nwned ar controlied by any palitical party, politic omxmttee, or candidate”);
1d. § 434(H)(3XB)) (providing similar excnption from the definition of “electioneering aosimunication™);
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and, thus, was not subject to the same prohibitions that applied to ANCA. Finally, with respect
to Krikorian, OGC recommended taking no action at this time.

II. ANALYSIS

A. Post-Citizens United, the Commission’s corporate facilitation regulations no
longer appear to be valid when applied to corparate fundraising activities
that are conducted independently of federal candidates and political party
committees.

Section 441b(a) of the Act bans both contributions and expenditures by corporations and
labor organizations. In Citizens United, however, the Supreme Court struck down the ban on
corporate 1ndep°ndent expenditures and electioneering commumcatlons bacause such spendimg
does not give rise to corruption or the appenrance thereof.® Thus, corporations may now engage
in independent political spending, including expross advocacy communications, provided auch
activities are nat coordinated with a federal candidate or a palitical party committee. The
carporate cordribution ban, however, remains in place.

Commission regulations also prohibit corporations and labor organizations from
“facilitating the makmg of contributions to candidates or political committees.”” Under this rule,
“facilitation means usmg corporate or labor organization resources or facilities to engage in
fundraising activities in connection with any federal election. 8 An exaniple of facilitation is
“[u]sing a corporate or labor organization list of customers, clients, vendors er others who are
not in the restricted class to solicit contributions ..., unless the corporatlon or iabor organization
receives advance payment for the fair markat value of the list.”

Following Citizens United, the question arises: to what extent does the facilitation
regulation remain valid? One can no longer answer this question with merely the conclusory
statement that any communication solieiting federal contributions can be prohibited. Because
the Supreme Court has struck down the statutory provisions prohibiting corporate and labor
independent expenditures, we must determine whether specific activities or communications
once prohibited under § 441b are now permitted.

In our view, the answer to the qucstion above turns on whether the “facilitation? activity
at issne is mere akdia to a contribution—which corparatiocs remain prohibited fram making—or
an independent expenditure—which corporatians are constitutionally entitled to make. To us,
corporate communications that solicit contributions and that are not coordinated with federal
candidates or politiral parties ate much more comparable to independent expenditures then

6 Citizens United, 130 S. Ct. at 909.
7 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(f)(1).
s d

> Id §11420Q))C).
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contributions. As such, these types of communications do not give rise to corruption or the
appearance thereof and, thus, canmot be restricted by the facilitation regulation.

In Citizens United, the Supreme Court stated: “Section 441b’s prohibition on corporate
independent expenditures is ... a han on speech. ... [Pjplitical speech must prevail against laws
that wauld suppress it, whether by design or inadvertance.”'® Without question, a soficitation for
contributions to a federal candiduie is as much “politicai speech” as a communication calling on
voters to cast their ballots for a partioular candidate. Simply because the subject of the former
communication is a solicitation, it does not follow that we are granted the authority to regulate
it—"[p]remised on mistrust of governmental power, the First Amendment stands against attempt
to disfavor certain subjects or vi¢.=.wpoints.”ll Therefore, because a solicitation done
independently of a federal candidate or political party committee is political speech, it is as
deserving of the full panoply of constitutional protections that is afforded to independent
communicatiuns.

Consequently, post-Citizens United, if a corporation may ask people to vote for a federal
candidate in an independent communication, then surely it may also make an independent
communication asking people to make a contribution to that candidate. In other words, if a
corporation enjoys the constitutional right to run an independent ad saying “Vote for Smith,” we
fail to see how less constitutional protection could be afforded an independent ad saying
“Contribute to Smith.”

t * *

The facts in this matter are distinguishable from those from a pre-Citizens United
matter—MUR 6127 (VIDA Fitness)—where the Commijssion found reason to believe that a
corporation violated the Commission’s facilitation regulation. There, the president of VIDA
Fitness coordinated a political fundraiser for Obama for America at a company-owned location
and e-mailed an invitation for that fundraiser to the VIDA Fitness e-mail list.'* The invitation,
which included a solicitation for contributions to Obama for America and the Democratic
National Committee, had been prepared by an Obama campaign official.”®

Here, by vontrast, the solicitation was not part of any general, coordinated fundraising
effaxt. The communicntian was not eredied by Knikorian or his federal cammittee. Nar did
Krikarian or his federnl cammittee “disect[] ANCA ... to soficit funds an behatf of” Krikorian.'*
As the Supreme Court has noted, “[t]he absence of prearrangement and coordination of an

10 Citizens United, 130 S. Ct. at 898. See also id. at 904 (“If the First Amendment has any force, it prohibits
Congress from fining or jailing citizens, or associations of citizens, for simply engaging i politieal spsech.”).

n Id. at 898.
12 MUR 6127, VIDA Fitness Conciliation Agreement, at 3.
13 Id First General Counsel’s Report at 10.

1" MUR 6211, Krikorian Response at 1.
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expenditure with the candidate or his agent not only undermines the value of the expenditure to
the candidate, but also alleviates thie danger that expenditures will be given as a quid pro quo for
improper commitments from the cundidate.”™ As sueh, we are not faced with concerns
regarding vorruption or appearance thereof. Thus, the VIDA Fitness MUR is not applicable
here.

In sum, this is a speech case, not a contribution case. The Supreme Court made clear in
Citizens United that independent corporate political speech may vot be prohibited. Thus, the
Commission’s facilitation regulation may no longer be used to prohibit independent corporate
communications that urge persons to make contributions directly to federal candidates. As noted
above, there is no evidence indicating the ANCA coordinated its e-mail solicitation with
Krikorian. Thetefore, we concluded the Commission cannot apply 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(f) to
ANCA'’s c-mail solicitations.

B. Citizens United calls into question the Commission’s ability to discriminate
between speakers based on whether the speaker is a media entity.

At the heart of the Citizens United decision is the holding that the federal government
may not afford greater independent speech rights to some than to gthers—“[p]rohibited, too, are
restrictions distinguishing among different speakers, allowing speech by some but not by
others.”!® In fact, “the Government may commit a constitutional wrong when by law it identifies
certain preferred spedkers. ... The First Amendment protects speech and speakers, and the ideas
that flow from each.”'” An independcat conmmumication imploring others to make a contribution
to a foderal candidate is as much an “idea” to be protected as a call to vote for a candidate. Thus,
sincs individuals nre freely permitted to independently solicit commnibutions for federat
candidates, thore appears to be no basis far not allowing corporations te do the snme.'

This holding required the Court to overrule its decision in Austin v. Michigan Chamber of
Commerce," in which the Court upheld a Michigan state law prohibiting corporate independent

15 Citizens United, 130 S. Ct. at 908 (quoting Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U S. 1, 47 (1976)).
16 Id. at 899.
1 Id. See also id. at 908 (noting that “if § 441b’s expenditure ban were constitutional, ... wealthy individuals

and unincerporated associations can spend unlimited amount on independent expenditures. Yet certain disfavored
associations of citizens — those that have taken on the corporate form — are penalized for engaging in the same
political speech™).

18 Our analysis here ih no way runs counter ta the Court’s decisina in FEC v. National Right to Work
Committee, 459 U.S. 197 (1982) (“NRWC”). The Court in Citizens United nated that NRWC has “little relevancs”
when dealing with limits on independent expenditures. Rather, according to the Caurt, “NRWC decided no more
than a restriction on a corporation’s ability to solicit funds for its segregated PAC, which made direct contributions
to candidates, did not violate the First Amendment.” Thus, in NRWC, the Court upheld a limitation on a
corporation’s ability to solicit contributions to its separate segregated fund (*SSF”), which in turn would be making
direct contributions to federal candidates. Here, by contrast, ANCA was not soliciting funds to a cennected SSF that
would be making candidate contributions. Nor did ANCA servc as a bundler or conduit for contributions to
Krikorian: Instead, ANCA rierely acked e-mall recipiasts ta give maney directly to Krikarian.

19 494 U.S. 652 (1990)
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expenditures. 2’ In domg so, the Court in Citizens United focused much of its reasoning on the
Act’s “press exemptlon, ! which exempts from the definition of expenditure “any news story,
commentary, or editorial distributed through the faollities of aay broadoast station, newspaper,
mngazine, or othor paticdical pablication, unless such facilities are owned or centrollod by any
political party, politleal oomunittee, ar candidnte.””? Cormission regulations have extenoed toe
scape of the exemptiat to cover web sites and Iritemet and electronie puhlications.?

The Court stated that, under Austin’s rationale, the press exemption is not mandated by
the Con,stltutlon but is merely a statutory protection that Congress could potentially withdraw at
any time.?* The Court strongly disagreed with this reasoning, explaining that “[t]he medla
exemption discloses further difficulties” with the § 441b’s corporate expenditure ban.23 For one,
the Court noted, “[t]here is simply no support for the view that the First Amendment, as
onglnally understood would permit the suppression of politital speech by media
corporaions.”? Furthcrmote, aceording to the Const, “[t]here is no precedent spporting laws
thmat attempt to distinguish between corparutians whick ere deemed to be axerapt as medit
corporations and those which are not. We have consistently rejected the pmposmon that the
institutional press hes any comstitutional privilege beyand that af other speekers.””

The media exemption, however, directly provides such a privilege. As the Court noted,

So even assuming the most doubtful proposition that a news organization has a
right to speak when others do not, the exemption would allow a canglomerate that
owns both a media business and an unrelated business to influence or control the
media in erder to advance its overall business intorest. At the same tirne, some
other corporation, with an itlentieni bosiness interest but no media outlet in its
vaership stmoture, would be farbidden to speek or inform the puhlic abaut the
same fisue. Tlus differential treatment cannot be squared with the First
Amendment.?®

2 The Court’s holding also required it to overrule a portion of its decision in McConnell v. Federal Election

Commission, 540 U.S. 93 (2003).
2 The press exemption also applies to electioneering communications.
2 2 U.S.C. § 451(9)(BXi).

B 11 CF.R. § 100.132.

% Citizens United, 130 S. Ct. at 905.

z I
% Id. at 906.
27

Id. at 905 (internal quotations and citations omitted).

® Id. at906.
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Here, we face a situation similar to the Court’s hypothetical—ANCA and the Armenian
Weekly published the exact same communication supporting Krikorian aizd asking others to
contribute to his campaign. Yet under OGC’s recommendations, only one was granted the press
exemption and, thus, was free speak without restriction. According to the Court, such
“gifferential treatment cannot be squased with the Firat Amendment.”?

Nor c__an we support disparate treatment based on the differences in the modes of
communication. “Rapid changes in technology — and the creative dynamic in the concept of free
expression — counsel against upholding a law that restricts political speech in certain media or by
certain speakers.” Accordmg to the Court,

Today, 30-second television ads may be the most effective way to convey a
political message. Soon, however, it may be that Internet sources, such as blogs
and social networking Web sites, will provide citizens with significant
infonmation abaut political candidates and issues. Yet § 441b weuld seem to ban
a blog post expressly advocating the election or defeat af a candidate if that blog
were created with corporaie fiords. The First Amendment does not permit
Congress to make these categorical ﬂlsnnctmns based on the corporate identity of
the speaker and content of the political speech.’!

Thus, tq the extent there are differences between an e-mail to a corporate distribution list and a
weekly publication, the Court deems such differences irrelevant—*“[w]e must decline to draw,
and then redraw, constitutional lines based on the particular media or technology used to
disseminate peliticel speech from a particular speaker.”*?

Tkerefore, since distincticnn hased on speaker identity, speech cantent, and the means of
distribution are illegitimate, any Commission determination that would punish ANCA for
engaging in the exact same speech activity that the Armenian Weekly is free to undertake would
be constitutionally problematic. Instead, Citizens United clearly counsels us to refrain from
prohibiting or punishing independent speech by either ANCA or the Armenia Weekly.

29 d

% I1d

3 Id. at 913 (internal quotations and citations omitted).

52 Id at 891. See also id at 890 (“[A]ny effort by the Judlclary to decide which means of communications are

to preferred for the partlcular type of message and speaker would raise questions as to the courts’ own lawful
authority.”).



11044284612

Statement of Reasons in MUR 6211
Page 8 of 8

III. CONCLUSION
For the foregoing reasons, we voted to reject OGC’s recommendation to find reason to

believe that ANCA violated the Act and to take no action at this time against David Krikorian
and Krikorian for Congress.»

fm /2 #/ov:f Da:é/zz‘fl/l/

AROLINE C. HUNTER

Vice Chair
(A1 /24 <]
DONALD F. McGARN II Date
Commissioner
_ .\/ 24} [oo\)
MATTHEW S. PETERSEN Date /
Commissioner

33 As noted above, with regard to David Krikorian and Krikorian for Congress, instead of taking no action, we
supported finding no reason to believe that either of those respondents violated the Act.
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In the Matter of

Krikorian for Congress and Nathan
Bailey, in his official capacity as

BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

N N N N Nt Nt N

treasurer; David Krikorian; Armenian MUR 6211
National Committee of America;
Hairenik Association, Inc. (d/b/a
Armenian Weekly)
CERTIFICATION

1, Shawn Woodhead Werth, recording secretary of the Federal Election Commission

executive session, do hereby certify that on December 14, 2010, the Commission took the

following actions in the above-captioned matter:

1.

Failed by a vote of 2-3 to:

a. Find reason to believe the Armenian National Cormmittee of America violated
2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) and 11 C.FR. § 114.2(f).

b. Find no reason to believe the Armenian National Committee of America
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d.

c. Find no reason to believe Hairenik Association, Inc. (d/b/a Armenian Weekly)
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b(a) and 441d, and close the file with respect to it.

d. Take no action at this time with respect to Krikorian for Congress and Nathan
Bailey, in his official capacity as Treasurer, and David Krikorian.

e. Authorize the use of compulsory process, including interrogatories and
subpoenas duces tecum, as necessary.

f. Approve the Factual and Legal Analyses, as recommended in the First General
Counsel’s Report dated August 4, 2010.

g. Approve the appropriate letters.

Commissioners Waither and Weintraub voted affirmutively for the motinr.

Commissioners Hunter, McGahn II and Petersen dissented. Commissioner Bauerly did not vote.
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Certification for MUR 6211
December 14, 2010

2. Decided by a vote of 5-0 to:
a. Close the file.
b. Send the appropriate letters.
Commissioners Hunter, McGahn I, Petersen, Walther and Weintraub voted affirmatively

for the decision. Commissioner Bauerly did not vote.

Attest: .
Dty rvber 1, 5010 gﬁwud)maw A)Mﬁ/
Date * Shawn Woodhead Werth MZ '
Secretary and Clerk of the Comnission
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

Nathan Bailey, Treasurer DEC 2 0 201
Krikorian for Congress

PO Box 43372

Cincinnati, OH 45243

Re: MURG6211
Dear Mr. Bailey:

On September 3, 2009, the Federal Election Commission notified Krikorian for
Congress and you, in your official capacity as Treasurer (“the Committee™), of a
complaint alleging that the Committee had violated certain sections of the Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”). On December 14, 2010, the
Commission oensidered the oomplaint but closed its file in this matter.

Daouments related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. .
See Statement of Policy Regardiag Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First
General Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009).
A Statement of Reasons explaining the Commission's decision will follow.

If you have any questions, please contact Tracey L. Ligon, the attorney assign
to this matter, at (202) 694-1650. '

Sincerely,

QY

RS Q. Luckett  ~
Acting Assistant General Counsel
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

Ms, Sarah P. Gorman DEC 2 0 2010
Burke, Williams & Sorensen

444 S, Flower Street, Suite 2400

Los Angeles, CA 90071

Re: MUR 6211
Hairenik Association Inc. d/b/a The Armenian Weekly

Dear Ms. Gorman:

On September 3, 2009, the Federal Election Commission notified your client,
Hairenik Association Inc. d/b/a The Armenian Weekly, of a complaint alleging that it had
violated certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.

On December 14, 2010, the Commiission cansiderod the complaint but there was
an insufficient number of votea to find reasan to belisve Hairenik Association Inc. ri/b/a
The Armenian Weekly violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b(a) and 441d. Accordingly, the
Commission closed its file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18,2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First
General Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009).
A Statement of Reasons explaining the Commission's decision will follow.

If you have any questions, please contact Tracey L. Ligen, the attorney assigned
to this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

., 2

oy Q Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

CERTIFIED MAIL DEC 2 0 2010
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Phil Greenberg, Treasurer
Schmidt for Congress

P. O. Box 867

Milford, OH 45150

Re: MUR 6211
Armenian National Committee of America
Hairenik Association Inc. d/b/a The Armenian Weekly
Krikorian for Congress and Nathan Bailey, in his official
capacity as Treasurer

Dear Mr. Greenberg:

The Federal Election Commission has considered the allegations contained in
your complaint dated August 24, 2009, but there was an insufficient number of votes to
find reason to believe the above-referenced respondents violated the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, or the Commission’s implementing regulations.
Accordingly, on December 14, 2010, the Commission closed the file in this matter.

A Statement of Reasons providing a basis for the Commission's decision will follow.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Clesed Enfercement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Plaeing First
General Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009).

The Federal Election Campaign Act allows a complainant to seek judicial review
of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8). If you have any
questions, please contact Tracey L. Ligon, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202)
694-1650.

Sincgrely,

> C)

oy Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

Ms, Sarah P. Gorman D
Burke, Williams & Sorensen EC 2 0 2019
444 S. Flower Street, Suite 2400

Los Angeles, CA 90071

Re: MUR 6211
Armenian National Committee of America

Dear Ms. Gorman:

On September 3, 2009, the Federal Election Commission notified your client, the
Armenian National Committee of America, of a complaint alleging that it had violated
certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, and the
Commissions implementing regulations.

On DPecember 14, 2010, the Commission consitered the complaint buit there was
an insufficient number of votes to find reason to believe the Armenian National
Committee of America violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441b(a) and 441d, and 11 C.F.R. § 114.2(f).
Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First
General Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009).
A Statement of Reasons explaining the Commission's decision will follow.

If you have any questions, please comaet Tracey L. Ligon, the attorney assigned
to this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Tl

Roy Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel
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